ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COMVERCE STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 26, 2012
3:21 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Kurt O son, Chair
Representative Craig Johnson, Vice Chair
Representative M ke Chenaul t

Represent ati ve Dan Saddl er
Representative Steve Thonpson
Representati ve Li ndsey Hol nes
Representative Bob Ml ler

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 259
"An Act establishing procedures and guidelines for auditing
pharmacy records; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 218
“"An Act prohibiting an insurer from using a drug formulary
system of specialty tiers under certain circunstances."”
- MOVED CSHB 218(L&C) QUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 259
SHORT TI TLE: PHARMACY AUDI TS
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) MJNOZ, P. W LSON

01/ 17/ 12 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 13/ 12

01/ 17/ 12 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 17/ 12 (H) L&C, FIN

02/ 27/ 12 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

02/ 27/ 12 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 27/ 12 (H) M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 16/ 12 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

03/ 16/ 12 (H) Heard & Hel d

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -1- March 26, 2012



03/ 16/ 12 (H) M NUTE( L&C)
03/ 26/ 12 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

BILL: HB 218
SHORT TITLE: PRESCRI PTI ON DRUG SPECI ALTY Tl ERS
SPONSOR(s): HEALTH & SOCI AL SERVI CES

03/31/11 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
03/ 31/ 11 (H) HSS, L&C

02/ 28/ 12 (H) HSS AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 28/ 12 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 28/ 12 (H) M NUTE( HSS)

03/ 15/ 12 (H) HSS RPT 2DP 4NR

03/ 15/ 12 (H DP: KERTTULA, M LLER

03/ 15/ 12 (H) NR. M LLETT, SEATQN, HERRON, KELLER
03/ 15/ 12 (H) HSS AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 15/ 12 (H) Moved Qut of Conmttee

03/ 15/ 12 (H) M NUTE( HSS)

03/16/12 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

03/ 16/ 12 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 16/ 12 (H) M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 26/ 12 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE CATHY MUNQZ

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as bill sponsor of HB 259.

BARRY CHRI STENSEN, Phar nmaci st

| sl and Phar macy, | nc.

Co-Chair, Legislative Conmttee

Al aska Pharmaci sts Associ ati on ( AKPhA)

Ket chi kan, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 259.

M KE BARNHI LL, Deputy Conmi ssi oner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Depart ment of Adm nistration (DOA)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of SB 259.

JON SHERWOOD

Medi cai d Special Projects

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 2- March 26, 2012



Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions on
amendnents to HB 259.

LI NDA HALL, Director

Di vi sion of Insurance

Anchorage O fice

Departnment of Commerce, Conmunity & Econom c Devel opment ( DCCED)
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during the
di scussi on of 259.

NANCY DAVI S, Executive Director

Al aska Pharmaci sts Associ ati on ( APA)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 259.

M CHAEL CARTI ER, Pharmaci st; Executive Vice President

Envi si on Pharnmaceuti cal Services (Envision)

San Franci sco, California

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to parts of HB 259.

LI S HOUCHEN, Northwest Regional Director

Nat i onal Association of Chain Drugstores

A ynpi a, Washi ngt on

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 259.

JANET OGAN, Staff

Representative Wes Kel |l er

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 218 on behalf of the House
Health and Soci al Services Standing Conmmttee of which
Representative Keller is the chair.

SHEELA TALLMAN, Manager

Legislative Affairs

Premera Blue Cross Blue Shield of Al aska [Prenera]
Mount | ake Terrace, Washi ngton

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 218.

LI NDA HALL, Director

Di vision of |nsurance

Anchorage Ofice

Depart ment of Commrerce, Conmunity & Econom c Devel opnent ( DCCED)
Anchor age, Al aska

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- March 26, 2012



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during the
di scussi on of 218.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
3:21: 23 PM

CHAIR KURT OLSON called the House Labor and Commerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:21 p.m Representatives Mller,
Thonpson, Saddl er, Hol nes, and O son were present at the call to
or der. Representatives Johnson and Chenault arrived as the
nmeeti ng was in progress.

HB 259- PHARVACY AUDI TS

3:21:46 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 259, "An Act establishing procedures and
gui delines for auditing pharmacy records; and providing for an
effective date."

3:22: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CATHY MJUNQZ, Alaska State Legislature, sponsor,
stated that the bill wuld clarify procedures for pharnmacy
audi t s. Since the conmittee last met, the states of Utah and
| ndi ana have passed simlar legislation, in fact, the law in

Utah in nore stringent. Several |arge enployers, including Wl -
Mart and Walgreen, and the Alaska Pharmacists Association
support the bill. She has four anendnents that specifically
address issues and Medi caid audit procedures.

3:23:53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON noved to adopt Anmendnent 1, |abeled 27-
LS0675\1.2, Martin, 3/14/12, which read as foll ows:

Page 2, following line 5:
I nsert a new paragraph to read:
"(3) an auditor may not audit nore than 75
prescriptions during a single audit;"
Renunber the foll owi ng paragraphs accordingly.

CHAI R OLSON obj ected for purpose of discussion.

3:24: 27 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -4- March 26, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE MUNQZ expl ai ned that Amendnent 1 would limt the
nunber of prescriptions audited during a single audit to 75
prescriptions. She reported according the Acadeny of Mnaged
Care Pharmacies the nunber of prescriptions audited typically
ranges from 25-125 cl ains. According the Al aska Pharmacists
Association (APA) many states with pharnacy auditing standards
[imt the nunmber of prescriptions an auditor may cover during a
single audit. She related that the organization says that 75
prescriptions per audit is a fair nunber - based on an k|l ahoma
pharmacy |aw that passed last year - especially when a
pharmaci st often fills on average nore than 200 prescriptions a
day. This translates into 200 original docunents that nust be
stored along with invoices from wholesalers to prove when the
drugs were ordered, received, and billed.

3:25: 44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked whether there is currently any
nunmerical limt on the scope of audits or if it is unlimted.

BARRY CHRI STENSEN, Pharnmacist, |sland Pharmacy, Inc.; Co-Chair,
Legislative Committee, Al aska Pharmaci sts Association (AkPhA),
noted there is not any limt on the clains that can be audited.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER inquired as to whether any other states
have a nunerical limt.

DR. CHRI STENSEN answered that npbst states that have passed
simlar legislation have identified a limt, wth 75 as a md-
range nunber In further response to Representative Saddler, Dr.
Chri stensen answered he recalled the range of a naxi mum of 200
and a m ni mrum of 35-40 prescriptions.

3:27:55 PM

M KE BARNHI LL, Deputy Comnm ssioner, Ofice of the Comm ssioner,
Department of Admi nistration (DOA), on behalf of the DOA and the
Division of Retirenment and Benefits, stated that the departnent
is the admnistrator of a large health insurance plan - the
Al askaCare pl an. The retiree portion has close to 40,000
menbers plus their dependents. The active portion of the plan
currently has about 6,000 nenbers. As the plan adm nistrator
the DOA nmanages the prescription spend, which has been steadily
increasing at a rather |arge pace in the past several years. He
stated that the DOA's position is that pharmacy audits are
inmportant to hel p manage the expenditures to ensure the plan is

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 5- March 26, 2012



paying the appropriate anount for prescriptions and to ensure
contracts are being adm ni stered and enforced appropriately.

MR. BARNHI LL expressed concern with the present configuration of
HB 259 since it appears to unduly |imt the DOA's ability to
admnistrator a portion of its responsibilities, but the
adm nistration is willing to work with the sponsor and conmttee
on HB 259.

3:29:30 PM

CHAIR OLSON related his wunderstanding that between the active
and retired enployees that the state has about 70 percent of the
partici pants statew de.

MR. BARNHILL agreed it is definitely a large nunber. He
expressed concerns with Amendnent 1, since it would |imt any
one audit to 75 prescriptions, especially given that pharnacists
are issuing up to 200 prescriptions a day. He said that 75
prescriptions seenmed unduly small plus the state's auditors need
the ability to order nore prescriptions. He pointed out that
there is obviously a tension between the best interests of
pharmaci sts and the best interests of the insurance plan. He
said, "W'd |like to save noney. They'd |like to nmake noney. I
get that and |I'm sure the commttee does as well, but we stil
need to be able to manage this on behalf of the people of the
State of Al aska who are ultimately paying for this."

3:30: 56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JCOHNSON asked whether another audit could be
conducted soon after the first audit.

MR. BARNHILL recalled Representative Saddler also asked a
simlar question. He responded that he did not believe there is
any limt on the nunber of audits that can be conducted, but he
did not understand the reason to arbitrarily limt an audit to
75 prescriptions which could wunduly burden the auditor to

determine if the plan is prudently managing its resources. He
said he did not think this would assist either the pharnacists
or the plan. I nstead of submitting to one audit an auditor may

have to endure three nore audits tacked on to get around limt
of 75 prescriptions.

3:31: 54 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- March 26, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked if he could suggest any nunber that
woul d be better.

MR. BARNHI LL answered no, that in fairness an audit should cover
what the auditor needs to cover.

3:32:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked if 75 prescriptions are audited and
half are found not to neet the criteria whether that would all ow
the auditor to go back and audit nore.

MR. BARNHI LL answered that nothing in HB 259 would allow that to
happen. In further response to Representative Johnson, he
answered that if auditors did not find any issues that fact
al one woul d potentially give auditors information.

3:32: 51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked whether any nechanism is in place
to protect auditors from enduring five audits in a nonth which
would result in the necessity of having to shut down pharnmacy
operations to answer questions.

MR. BARNHI LL responded the departnment does not object to a
nunber of provisions in the bill that provide procedura
prot ections. He referred to page 2, lines 3-5, paragraph 2,
which protects the first seven days of the nonth due to high
vol une. He said that paragraphs 12, 13, 14, 15 also provide
al so provide procedural protections. He stated that state has
no interest in making it burdensone for pharnacists, but nerely
wants to protect the resources of the plan.

3:34:15 PM

CHAI R OLSON renoved his objection.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON nmade a notion to table Anmendnent 1, in
order to allow the commttee an opportunity to review how the
anendnents fit together as a whole. There being no further

obj ection, Anendnent 1 was tabl ed.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON nade a notion to adopt Amendnent 2,
| abel ed 27-LS0675\1.3, Martin, 3/14/12, which read, as foll ows:

Page 2, following line 23:
I nsert a new paragraph to read:

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -7- March 26, 2012



"(11) an auditor may not assess a charge-
back, recoupnent, or other penalty against a pharnacy
based on a prescription that is nailed or delivered by
request of a patient as part of a routine business
practice;"

Renunber the foll ow ng paragraphs accordingly.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES obj ect ed for purpose of discussion.

3:35:25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNCZ referred to page 2, line 23. She stated
Amendnment 2 would add a new paragraph to prevent penalizing
pharmacies that routinely routine mail prescription by nail
She explained that this routine practice was held against a
phar maci st during an audit. She reiterated that Anmendnent 2

would not allow auditors to negatively inpact pharnmacists who
engage in mailing prescriptions.

3:36:26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES asked whether the intention of the
anmendnent is to prohibit the auditor fromauditing solely on the
fact that the prescription is by mil. She related her
under st andi ng that Anmendnent 2 woul d renove any prescription out
of the realmof the audit.

REPRESENTATI VE MUNOZ answered that the purpose of Amendnent 2 is
to ensure agai nst chargebacks or additional recoupnent for nail
order prescriptions.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES acknow edged she was wunsure if she
understood the terns.

REPRESENTATI VE MUNOQZ expl ai ned that Amendnent 2 would prevent
penal i zi ng pharnacies whose practice is to mil or deliver
prescription drugs by request of a patient as part of their
routi ne business practice.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES agreed with the concept, but was unsure of
the drafting of Anendnent 2. She said it seens fair to say a
pharmaci st would not have extra penalties or burdens assessed
sinply because sonething was nmailed and |ots of insurance plans
prefer people order prescriptions by mail since buying in bulk
often results in cost savings. She cautioned against meking it

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 8- March 26, 2012



impossible for an auditor to audit any prescription sinply
because it was nail ed.

REPRESENTATI VE MUNQZ agreed that is not the intent of Amendnent
2.

3:38:27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked what is wong wth delivering
prescriptions by mail.

DR. CHRI STENSEN answered that some PBMS also own nail order
pharmacies and try to put sonething in contract to prohibit it.
As a routine business practice, pharnmacists wusually have a
return receipt or postcard that the patient signs to ensure
delivery. He related the pharmacists do not to preclude any
prescription from being audited, but would like to ensure that
auditors do not hand nmil order prescriptions any differently
t han ot her prescriptions.

3:40: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER related his understanding that sone
peopl e have contractual limtations by mail. He asked whet her
it wuld be illegal to do so or if prohibiting mail order

prescriptions is a common practi ce.

DR. CHRI STENSEN answered that mail order prescriptions are a
common practice in Al aska. He related a scenario in which a
Fai r banks pharmaci st mails prescriptions or other goods to rural
Al aska residents. He said that he wanted to ensure nenbers are
protected since there is not a pharmacy in every conmunity.

3:40: 59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER related a scenario in which a pharnaci st
signs up and agrees in witing to not send prescriptions by
mail. He inquired as to whether Anendnent 2 would elimnate the
necessity to abide by that agreenent.

DR. CHRI STENSEN responded t hat he assuned it woul d.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER suggested Anendnent nmay need to be
nodified for clarity.

3:41:35 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -9- March 26, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE THOMPSON nenti oned Representative Hol nes pointed
out earlier that Anmendnent 2 appears not to allow namil order
prescriptions to be audited. He suggested the |anguage shoul d
be clear that recoupnent could not be assessed solely based on
prescriptions nmailed to patients.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES said that was the direction she was
t hi nki ng makes the nost sense. She agreed with Representative
Thonpson on Anmendnent 2.

3:42: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON clarified his understanding that when a
pharmacy exclusively mailed prescriptions the |anguage would
ensure the pharmacy would never be audited. He further
understood that an auditor cannot assess recoupnent or charge-
backs on a mail order prescription. He concluded that a
pharmacy would never have to worry about paying penalties for
mai | order prescriptions.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER concurr ed.

REPRESENTATI VE MUNOZ stated that the intention of Amendnent 2 is
not to stop auditing on the procedures, but to ensure a
pharmaci st does not receive a penalty for mailing out a mail-
order prescription, which is a comon practice in Al aska
comunities w thout access to a pharnacy.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES said she interpreted Anendnent 2 the sane
way as Representative Johnson, which she did not think was the
sponsor's intent so she suggested the Amendnent 2 be rewitten.

3:43: 43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT asked for specific penalties on nai
order prescriptions. He wondered whether the auditor's issue is
the return receipt paperwork or that the prescription is mailed
out versus not being mailed out.

DR. CHRI STENSEN suggested Amendnent 2 nmay need to be changed to

reflect that it does not intend to exenpt nmail or der
prescriptions from being audited. He expressed concern that in
one pharnmacy nenber's case an auditor wanted all of the

prescription costs reinbursed.

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT asked the reason a pharnmaci st would be
penal i zed for a mail order prescription.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 10- March 26, 2012



DR. CHRI STENSEN restated his earlier comment that it is because
a PBM views it as conpetition since they own their own mail
order pharnacy.

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT suggested if the paperwork is filled out
properly that there should not be any penalty unless the
contract contains a "no nmail policy."

MR. BARNHI LL answered that the admnistration has no objection
to the intent of Amendnent 2, subj ect to appropriate
wordsmithing by the |legislative | egal attorneys.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES renoved her objection.
3:47:04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON nmade a notion to table Anmendnent 2 in
order to allow the commttee an opportunity to review how the
amendnents fit together as a whole. There being no further
obj ection, Anendnent 2 was tabl ed.

3:47:22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON nmade a motion to npve Anmendment 3,
| abel ed 27-LS0675\1.4, Martin, 3/14/12, which read:

Page 2, line 30, follow ng "provider,":
I nsert "docunmented telephone <calls from the
prescri ber or prescriber's agent,"

CHAI R OLSON obj ected for purpose of discussion.
3:47:40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNOZ explained that Anmendnent 3 would allow
pharmaci sts to wuse telephone records when responding to a
pharmacy audit. She expl ai ned substantial docunmentation occurs
after phone <calls to a pharmacist or doctor and these
comuni cations should be considered part of the prescription
record. She related a scenario in which a patient may show up
at a pharmacy to pick up a prescription sent by fax for
penicillin. The pharnmacist nmay notice the patient is allergic
to penicillin, confirmthis, and fax the information back to the
dentist; however, to expedite the prescription process, the
pharmacist calls the dentist and the dentist changes the
prescription to another antibiotic. The pharmaci st would

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -11- March 26, 2012



docunment the change on the original fax prescription and the
patient receives the proper nedication. She concl uded that
Amendnment 3 would sanction this scenario and allow tel ephone
records to be used to docunment changes to prescriptions.

CHAI R OLSON guessed Amendnent 3 was based on a specific case.

REPRESENTATI VE MUNOZ imagined it was based on a specific
i nstance, but elaborated that Anmendnent 3 would address connpn
practices.

3:49:22 PM
*

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON expressed concern about the docunentation
and how is that defined. He asked whether Amendnent 3 would
require the docunentation be witten docunentation.

REPRESENTATI VE MUNOZ deferred to Dr. Christensen.

DR. CHRI STENSEN answered that typically any changes would be
noted on hard copy of the original prescription. He al so hoped
that the dentist's office would have a simlar record change
not ed. He recapped by stating everything would generally be
witten down, including that the pharmacists would note the
time, date, and the pharmacist's initials wuld be witten on
t he prescription.

3:50: 56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON woul d |i ke Amendnent 3 clarified since he
interpreted it to mean a phone record could represent
docunent ati on.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER echoed Representative Johnson's conments
that phone record could represent docunentation, but would not
contain any information on the content, purpose, and originator.

MR. BARNHILL indicated the DOA does not have any objection to
Amendnent 3. He pointed out that paragraph 13 allows
pharmaci sts to use docunentation and tel ephone calls appear to
fall within the scope of documenting any record.

3:52:21 PM
REPRESENTATI VE M LLER assuned an auditor would confirm both ends

of the docunmentation, including the pharmacist and the denti st
in the earlier scenario. He inquired as to whether as this

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -12- March 26, 2012



pertains to a physical audit or just a phone call by the
audi t or.

CHAIR OLSON reiterated the question is if this pertained to
physi cal audits on prem se.

DR. CHRI STENSEN answered the issue could arise with a paper
audit, in which a PBM requests copies of the front and back of
prescriptions or an in pharmacy audit. He highlighted that by
law, a pharnmacist can currently take a verbal prescription from
a provider so long as the pertinent information is docunented.
He explained the intent of Anmendnment 3 is to ensure during the
course of an audit that these docunented phone records are
considered valid. He related a scenario in which during a paper
audit the pharmacist submts the docunented phone record, but
the auditor could chargeback on that item He envisioned that
it would be up to the pharmacist to provide proof in the event
of an appeal. The pharmaci st would obtain the proof and al so
need to provide confirmation from the dental office for the
audi t or.

3:54: 45 PM
CHAI R OLSON wi t hdrew his objection to Arendnent 3.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON nmade a notion to table Anmendnent 3, in
order to allow the commttee an opportunity to review how the
amendnents fit together as a whole. There being no further
obj ection, Anendnent 3 was tabl ed.

3:55:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON nade a notion to adopt Anmendnent 4,
| abel ed 27-LS0675\1.5, Martin, 3/14/12, which read, as foll ows:

Page 3, lines 15 - 16:
Delete all material and insert:
"(b) This section does not apply to
(1) a crimnal investigation; or
(2) an investigation or audit by a
gover nient al agency, i ncl udi ng state Medi cai d
prograns. "

CHAI R OLSON obj ected for the purpose of discussion.

3:55:32 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 13- March 26, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE MUNQZ expl ai ned Anendnent 4, which would exenpt
t hose prograns fromthe requirenents of the |aw

3:56:18 PM

JON  SHERWOOD, Medi caid  Speci al Proj ect s, Ofice of t he
Comm ssi oner, answered that Medicaid is governed by federal and
state law. There are specific state audit statutes that govern
Medi caid under AS 47.05. 0200. He stated that Amendnment 4 would
clearly remove any conflict with federal law or other state
audit statutes and allow enable them to use consistent audit
standards across their program and would also enable both the
departnment and the pharmacists to have a clear understanding of
what rules apply to Medicaid instead of trying to parse which
statute applies in each situation.

CHAIR OLSON related his wunderstanding that one effect of
Amendment 4 is to zero out the fiscal note.

MR, SHERWOOD answer ed yes.

3:57:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES conmented anything that clarifies the
Medi caid audit sounds good. She noted concerns were previously
expressed about the DOA's ability to audit. She inquired as to
whet her the | anguage in Amendnent 4 would allay the departnent's
concerns or if the amendnment woul d need further work.

MR. BARNHI LL would be very happy if the |anguage in Amendnent 4
applied to DQOA

3:59: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked if the Division of Retirenment and
Benefits is a governnental agency.

MR. BARNHI LL answered yes.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON answered that he thought the division was
cover ed.

3:59:29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked Dr. Christensen whether dua
enf orcenment causes any probl ens.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -14- March 26, 2012



DR. CHRI STENSEN responded that if the state's plan s
adm ni stered by a prescription benefit manager (PBM so he would
like <clarification that it does not apply to the state's
i nsurance program

4:00: 24 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked himto repeat.

DR. CHRI STENSEN answered that since the state's insurance plan
is admnistered - the state's prescription benefits portion - by
a prescription nmanager he envisioned that the state would al so
need to abide by this bill.

REPRESENTATI VE MUNQZ answered the intent of Amendnent 4 is that
all PBMs would fall wunder the procedures established in the
bill. Further, the intent of Anendnent 4 is to exenpt Medicaid
progranms and crimnal investigations.

4:01: 28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  HOLMES interpreted that the Division of
Retirenment and Benefits woul d be exenpt.

REPRESENTATI VE MUNQZ reiterated that the purpose of the bill is
to have PBMs, whether they represent the state or other
organi zations, to fall wunder the bill, but HB 259 does not

i ncl ude Medicaid or other federal audits.
4:02: 06 PM
CHAI R OLSON renoved his objection.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON made a notion to table Amendnent 4 in
order to allow the commttee an opportunity to review how the
amendnents fit together as a whole. There being no further
obj ection, Anendnent 4 was tabl ed.

CHAIR OLSON agreed the anmendnents need sone additional work and
staff has been taking notes.

4:03:18 PM
LI NDA HALL, Director, Division of Insurance, Anchorage Ofice
Department of  Commerce, Community & Econom c Devel opnent

(DCCED), stated it was interesting to reread bill. The division
has al so found sone issues with audits in other areas of health

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -15- March 26, 2012



care providers and with insurers performng audits approxi mtely
a year ago. The division adopted regulations that are not as
specific or all-enconpassing as HB 259 since they generally do
not deal w th overpaynent recoveries, which is the thrust of
this bill. She pointed out some simlar provisions that
conflict in timefranes. The division requires a 30-day notice
before an insurer can seek recovery. The auditor should be able
to identify the specific claim and reason, which she indicated
gets at extrapolation issue. The division has a narrower
timeframe - 365 days. The division has observed sone things
generally in the health care/health insurer practice in general,
not dealing with PBMs, but generally the audit of bills, whether
for a chiropractor, nedical, or pharmacist's office.

4:04: 54 PM

M5. HALL expressed sone concerns about HB 259, such that it
could create such an onerous environnent and PBMs may not want
to do business here. She identified the market as a small
mar ket.  The division has observed that some insurers decide to
use their resources elsewhere and PBMs mmy decide that, too.
She recalled today's discussion about contracts between the PBM
and an insurer or plan sponsor. She related that contracts are
designed for specific needs and goals of the parties and
expressed concern over any loss of flexibility or ability of the
parties to negotiate the ternms of these contracts. She offered
her belief that PBMs general provide oversight for cost savings.
She pointed out that these proposed changes do not affect the
DO's title; however, she does share concern about the cost of
health care, which directly correlates with prem um rates. She
reported that the division regulates rates which are based on

health care costs. She pointed out that if anything causes
health care costs to go up premuns wll also increase. She
expressed her general concern with the bill since the state has

t he hi ghest health insurance premuns in the country.
4:06: 46 PM

CHAIR OLSON inquired as to whether the case pending before the
U.S. Supreme Court [on the Patient Protection and Affordable
Care Act (PPACA)] could inpact the outcone of this bill.

MS. HALL answered that she did not think so since the issues are
two very different issues and could certainly inpact the state
and sone of the insurance issues, but she did not see it would
affect this issue.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 16- March 26, 2012



CHAI R OLSON suggested that the state may or may not see federal
oversight in areas related to this bill.

M5. HALL asked for clarification. She offered her belief there
is current nore federal oversight due to the general nature of
the health care reform laws, but she did not see the
relationship of audit procedures being affected, wth the
potential exceptions as previously noted by M. Sherwood.

4:07:48 PM

NANCY DAVI'S, Executive Director, Al aska Pharnmacists Association
(APA), read conmments from Bernie Kl ouda, Pharmacist at Bernie's
Phar macy. She al so provided sone statistics on audits and PBM
contracts in the state. She related that in July, August, and
Septenber 2011, Bernie's Pharmacy was subject to three PBM
audits within 90 days. She identified the three PBMs as CVS
Caremar k, Express Script, and Medco. She stated that each audit
covered two to three year period of tinme and included 250-300
prescriptions or nore. She reported that one was a desk audit

and two were on-site audits. The pharmacy had received |ess
than a 30-day notice for each audit, yet the preparation for
these audits is extensive and tedious, involving not only the
pharmaci st and technicians, but also other highly trained
per sonnel . She detailed it wuld take Bernie's Pharmacy
approximately two weeks of intensive work to prepare for an
audit, involving a pharmacist, technician, filling person and an

information technology (IT) person to capture signature |ogs and
ot her pertinent data required for an audit.

M5. DAVIS said that the pharmacy uses a human resources person
to act as a go between with pharmacy personnel, as well as two
pharmacy technicians to pull the hard copies of prescriptions.
She pointed out that even with this many people involved the
pharmacy still would have a difficult tine conpleting an audit
of 300 or nore prescriptions within an eight-hour period.
Further, the pharmacy nust still care for patients during the
audit and after an audit nust spend many days responding to the
results of the audit. She characterized the audit process as
one that takes a trenendous physical and enotional toll on their
pharmacy's staff. Phar maci sts understand the need for audits,
but feel that PBMs nust give longer notice with a specified
timeframe between nmultiple audits. Once audits have been
conpl eted, the pharnmacist often nmust then wait up to one year
for the results. She pointed out that their pharmacy has only
heard from one of the three PBMs so far on the audits conducted
| ast summer. She offered her belief that it is necessary to

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -17- March 26, 2012



i nclude language in the bill to outline specific timefranes of
notice, results, and negotiations of tinme between nultiple audit

requests. She noted that Bernie's Pharmacy is located in
Anchor age.

4:11: 25 PM

M5. DAVIS, in response to a request by their |obbyist, provided
sone statistics. She said that of the eight pharnmacies from
Sout heast to Northwest Alaska the audits ranged from one to 100
audi t s. The PBM contracts can also range from one to 100, as
wel | . After renoving the outliers - the high and low - the
average audits per year totaled 21 and the PBM contracts
nunbered approxi mately 40. She said she is working to obtain

some additional statistics fromchain pharmacies in Al aska.

4.:12:48 PM

M5. DAVIS noted one pharmacy in Southeast Al aska indicated that
audits seem to be increasing, which likely correlates to an
increase in prescription use nationw de. The audits for the

speci fic pharmacy increased from 21 in 2010 to 34 in 2011. She
noted that two pharnmacies had large audits, including Bernie's
Pharmacy. Anot her pharmacy in Southcentral had two |arge audits
over 100 prescriptions. She highlighted that what is very tine
consunmi ng for pharmacies is the copying for desk audits and even
the on-site audits.

4:13: 58 PM

CHAIR OLSON inquired as to whether the prescription copies could
be scanned.

DR. CHRI STENSEN answered by l|law, even if a pharmacy scans or
digitalizes prescriptions the pharmacist nust have the origina

hard copy on file. He reiterated that even if the pharnmacy
keeps an electronic file, the pharmacy nmust print out the
record, including copying the prescription front and back. In

further response to Chair O son, he agreed the signature can be
a digital signature.

4:15:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER recalled the average audit nunbered 21.
He asked whether that is per pharmacy or association.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 18- March 26, 2012



VB. DAVIS answered the figure represents the nunber of
pharmaci es that responded to her request. She further clarified
that the figure represents the average nunber of audits per year
per pharmacy or a total of 21 audits per year.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER recalled that the PBM contracts nunbered
40. He asked for further clarification on what that figure
meant .

M5. DAVIS answered that she took an average of six pharnacies,
after renoving the two outliers and tallied the total. She said
there were an average nunber of 40 contracts signed per
phar macy.

CHAIR OLSON, in response to a question, clarified that neant
there are 40 PBVs per pharmacy.

4:16: 30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER rel ated his understanding that on average
a pharmacy will contract with 40 PBMs.

M5. DAVIS answered that one pharmacy in Anchorage had 100
contracts with the |owest nunber for one pharmacy in Southeast
Al aska, which had four PBM contracts.

4:17:05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked her to identify the single nost
troubl esone aspect of pharmacy audits.

M5. DAVIS answered that it would be the PBMs do not give enough
notice to pharmacies. She supported a 30-day notice, which sone
states have gone to and not having audits occur during the first
week of the nmonth since is difficult since doctors are typically

busy and fill nore prescriptions. She stressed that pharmacists
are very busy. She characterized the bill as addressing the
matter of fair business practices. She pointed out that
extrapolation 1is an issue. She highlighted that nost

pharmaci sts are good business people and she could vouch for
t hem She acknow edged that there is always sone problem but
al nost all her nenbers are good business people and she could
vouch for them She identified extrapolation as another huge
probl em which has resulted in a need for |egal counsel. She
reiterated audits will not be elimnated and are necessary. She
concluded that there just needs to be a fair business practice.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -19- March 26, 2012



4:18: 47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked whether the Alaska Pharnacists
Associ ation (APA) could rank the 19 provisions in the bill.

M5. DAVIS offered to do so after obtaining feedback from
menbers. She highlighted that limting audit periods to two
years could be beneficial since the Al aska Board of Pharnmacy
does not require pharnmacists to keep records beyond two years.
She recall ed one pharmacy had been audited on records up to four
years earlier and needed to go to a storage area to obtain
records - and chip ice away to get to the records. She offered

her belief that provision seens fair and reasonable. She
cautioned that she did not want to mnimze anything in the
bill, but highlighted things she thinks fall under fair business
practi ces.

CHAIR OLSON indicated that she could pull together information
and submt it to his office for distribution to nenbers.

4:20:01 PM

M CHAEL CARTI ER, Pharnmacist; Executive Vice President, Envision
Phar maceuti cal Services  (Envision), stated that Envi si on
currently provides conprehensive services to the State of Al aska
retirees and dependents, including pharnmacy audits in the scope
of their services. He said that any noney recouped is returned
to their client, which is SOA health plan. He indicated that
Envi sion does not receive any revenue or reinbursenent for those

servi ces. He said he is testifying today in opposition to
certain provisions of HB 259. He stated that Envision
fundamentally agrees with many of the provisions in HB 259,
i ncl udi ng requiring adequat e noti ce, audi t nmet hodol ogy,

prohibition of extrapolation, auditors not being reinbursed
based on percentages, and with respect to the appeals process
and due process. He offered to bring up sone topics not yet
di scussed today. First, dispensing fees are an inportant part
of the reinbursenent fornmula for a valid prescription claim and
he disagreed with elimnating dispensing fees from an audit
recovery. He stated when a claimis determned to be invalid or
fraudulent that the noney is the property of the client or the
pl an.

4:21:47 PM

DR. CARTIER stated that secondly, in ternms of clinical or
pr of essi onal j udgnent , the audit nmust be conducted in

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 20- March 26, 2012



consultation with the pharmacist, which is |anguage in nost
state statutes and would be an inprovenment over the current
| anguage in bill. Further, the proposed anendnent to exclude
mail order clains should be rejected since in the event the
claimis found invalid or fraudulent that it should not matter
whet her a prescription is filled by mail or in person.

4:22:28 PM
CHAI R OLSON asked for comments on the 30-day notice provision.

DR. CARTIER answered that 14 days is the npbst commobn notice
provision so he would side with 14 days. He related he has
heard 30 days nentioned today, which he acknow edged is noticing
sone ot her states use.

CHAI R OLSON asked for coments on the provision that would limt
t he necessity of keeping hard copies for nore than two years.

DR. CARTI ER responded that hard copies and records woul d depend
on whether the transactions were conmmercial or governnental,
noting Medicaid and Medicare require longer tinefranmes and the
PBM nust be in full conpliance with those requirenents.

4:23:18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked himto restate the |anguage that is
nore appropriate in ternms of clinical and professional judgnent.

DR. CARTI ER responded that the existing |anguage says during an
audit which requires clinical or professional judgnment it nust
be done in consultation with a pharmacist licensed in the state.
The wvast mjority of other states have passed simlar
legislation to include |anguage such that when clinical or
prof essional judgnment is required it is done in consultation
wi th a pharnaci st .

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked whether his only objection is not
using a licensed pharnmacist in the state.

DR. CARTIER answered that clinical and professional judgnent is
conferred upon the scope of training, education, fellowships,
and residencies and scope of training and is not dependent on
| ocation or licensure in certain states but is nore a product of
educati on.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -21- March 26, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE  JOHNSON  asked whet her any audi tors are
phar maci st s.

DR. CARTI ER answered yes. He stated that some in his conpany
are pharmaci sts.

4:24:44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked whether he <could consult wth
hi nrsel f or hersel f.

DR. CARTI ER answered the consultation would be with the pharnmacy
or pharmacist that is being audited. Thus the consultation
woul d be professional to professional interaction.

4:25: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER recalled wearlier testinobny that one
reason a PBM would disallow nmail order prescriptions is since
the pharmacy would be in conpetition with other elenents of his
busi ness. He asked if he would I|ike to respond to the
al I egati on or concern.

DR. CARTIER answered that he guessed it would be nore of a
contractual requirenment between the PBM and the pharnacy. He
said it was not Envision' s concern. He reiterated that
Envision is not worried about conpeting with retail pharnacies
in Al aska.

4:26: 27 PM

LIS HOUCHEN, Northwest Regional Director, National Association
of Chain Drugstores, stated that of the 88 pharmacies in Al aska,
54 are chains. Her organi zation represents Costco, Healthmart
Systens, Carrs/Safeway, Target, Walgreens, and Wal-Mart. She
offered to reiterate sonme high points. She stated that HB 259
would set the standards by which pharnacies are audited and

allow for an appeal in case of a disagreenent. Phar nmaci es are
not opposed to audits based on suspicion of fraud, unlawf ul
billing practices and abuse. She conpared HB 259 with a simlar
bill signed into law |last week in Uah. She stated that notice

of audit in HB 259 requires two weeks, but in Uah is 10 days.
The first seven days of the nonth should not be audited under HB
259, but Uah limts it to five days. The |ook back period is
very simlar, which is 24 nonths in HB 259, but is 18-24 nonths
in the Uah |aw The nunber of clains to be audited is 75
claims in Al aska, whereas the Utah law |imts the audits to 200

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -22- March 26, 2012



cl ai ms. The areas that are the same in HB 259 and in Uah is
the no inclusion of dispensing fees in terns of recoupnent, a
60-day prelimnary audit report, and allows 30 days for
pharmaci es to respond, and establishes appeal s processes.

4:28:40 PM

M5. HOUCHEN stated that M. Davis identified what is nost
inportant to pharmacists is to set a standard by which audits
woul d be conducted and enconpasses the broad piece inportant to
everyone. She related, in ternms of the final report, that the
final report would be due in 90 days whereas in Uah it is due
within 120 days. She highlighted the only initial opposition in
Utah was fromthe three PBMs who nmet with proponents to work on
conpr om ses. She said that she and other nenbers of the APA
woul d be happy to work on possible conpromses to keep HB 259
novi ng.

4:29: 23 PM

MR. BARNHI LL enphasized that the DOA has concerns since the
state has a very large plan and manages upwards of 46,000
nmenbers, their dependents, and beneficiaries. The state spends
a large amount on pharnacy costs each year. He referred to a
docunent in nenbers' packets titled Al askaCare Drug Spend - July
2006 thru Decenber 2011 that details expenses per year. He
tallied the total costs by quarter and stated as follows the
fiscal year totals: in FY 07 - $98.3 mllion, FY 08 - $119.8
mllion, FY 09 - $126.4 mllion, FY 10 - $131.5 million, and in
FY 11 - $141.6 mllion. Thus over the past five and one-half
years, the state is approaching $700 mllion in prescription
drug spend for AlaskaCare Drug Spend for retirees and active
enpl oyees. He pointed out that this represents nine percent per
year growth rate. The state shares the concerns that M. Hall
noted earlier, which is the cost of health care in Alaska is
grow ng at an astounding rate and is unsustainable. He referred
to the next chart in nenbers' packets titled, "State of Al aska
Health Care Expenditures," and read totals for FY 01 at $885.7
mllion, which has increased to over $2 billion in FY 11. He
reported that the average annual growth rate per nenber ranges
between five and six percent, which is double the rate of
inflation in Al aska over this tine period. He concl uded that
this has resulted in the state having $11.1 billion in unfunded
liability costs. He stated that it 1is incunbent upon the
state's Division of Retirenent and Benefits to prudently manage
its health care expenditures, in particular, for prescription
costs since they are increasing at such a great rate.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 23- March 26, 2012



4:32:14 PM

MR. BARNHI LL pointed out that one way the state does this is by
conducting pharmacy audits. The state needs to continue to have
the appropriate tools to do so; however, the state does not want
to put pharmaci es out of business in Al aska. He said that this
is not the state's intention. The state wants all of the
medi cal providers to have healthy businesses. The state nust
achieve the situation in which nedical business is sustainable
for the providers and for the state. He predicted that the path
the state is <currently on in terns of health <care cost
expenditures is increasing at double or triple the rate of
inflation, which is not sustainable. He enphasized that the
state needs the tools to rein prescription drug costs in.

MR. BARNHI LL asked to discuss the DOA's concerns with the bill
He pointed out a nunber of procedural protections contained in
the bill. He suggested that audits or investigations are
entitled to certain protections, which he deened as fair. He
stated that the procedural protections are contained in
par agraphs 12 through 15. He said, "Those are fine."

4:33:53 PM

MR. BARNHI LL stressed that even without HB 259 the state would
insist the PBM should be fair when auditing a pharnacy. He
added that paragraphs 1 and 2 are al so procedural.

MR BARNHI LL listed the division's concerns sone of which have

al ready been covered. He referred to page 2, lines 6-7 to
paragraph 3, which would |imt audits to tw years. He
explained that the state's PBM enters into contracts wth
periods specified longer than two years. He recommended the

commttee let the contracts control this process.

MR. BARNHILL stated Ilimting audits that include clini-cal
prof essional judgnment to be conducted in consultation with a
pharmaci st licensed in Alaska is particularly concerning. He
stated there has been a disturbing trend towards a consolidation
of providers and whenever consolidation happens the prices also
i ncrease dramatically. He hoped this would not happen, but if
pharmaci sts band together in the state and resist audits this
provision would elimnate the ability of the PBVMs to prudently
audi t.

4:35:34 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 24- March 26, 2012



MR. BARNHI LL referred to paragraph 6 to how clerical errors are
handl ed. He stated that as a matter of law clerical errors that
are discovered and allowed to proceed may actually constitute
fraud.

MR. BARNHI LL referred to paragraph 7, relating that an auditor
conducting an audit my only have access to previous audit
reports prepared by the auditor, which seens too broad. He
stated that all PBMs should have the ability to review previous
audi ts.

MR. BARNHI LL referred to paragraph 8. He was unsure how this

would coincide wth Anmendnment 4. He said that wunder this
provision an auditor may only provide information to the person
requesting the audit and the pharmacy being audited. He

highlighted if an audit wuncovers crimnal msconduct that the
PBM has an obligation to refer that to the Departnment of Law for
revi ew.

MR. BARNHI LL referred to paragraph 11. He related that
di spensing fees were previously discussed. He stated that
di spensing fees cone out of the state's trust to pay the
phar maci st . He enphasized that if the prescription has been

filled in error he did not understand why the pharmacist should
keep the fees. He said that applies to paragraph 16, as well.

MR. BARNHILL referred to paragraph 18 with respect to interest
fees which may not accrue during an audit period. Again, these
are funds that the trusts or the state has paid. He stated when
a claimis paid in error the interest charged is sinply the tine
val ue of noney and it seens to himthat interest should accrue.

MR. BARNHILL referred to Section 4, the immedi ate effective
dat e. This bill wll require massive adjustnment of all the
contracts, which is tinme consumng and the state would ask for a
transition period.

4:37:58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked how nmuch the state has recovered
t hrough audits.

MR. BARNHI LL said he did not know. He offered to provide the
information to the commttee.

4:38:17 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 25- March 26, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked whether the audits are simlar to
the threat of IRS to keep people honest or if they are a revenue
sour ce.

MR. BARNHILL responded that the point of audits is to keep
honest people honest. More inportantly, the audits provide a
tool the PBM need to prudently govern and nonitor the anount
spent on prescriptions.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked for clarification on whether he
said the audits were tools to nonitor the anmpunt being spent or
t hat does not need to be spent.

MR. BARNHI LL answered that audits provide a tool the state can
use to prudently nonitor how the state is spending noney on
prescription drugs.

4:39:40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNCQZ asked whet her he has anal yzed whet her PBMs
actually add costs to prescription nedications.

MR. BARNHI LL answer ed no.

CHAI R OLSON br ought up extrapol ati on.

MR. BARNHILL stated he did not object to provisions in HB 259
related to extrapol ation. He stated he believes there is a
fairness elenent to that provision and he has no objection to
limting it.

CHAIR OLSON nentioned this provision neans a great deal to the
peopl e who have contacted his office.

4:40: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNCQZ i nquired as to whether he had any objection
to the 30-day notice prior to an audit.

MR. BARNHI LL answered that he did not have any objection to

provi di ng 30-days' notice prior to an audit. He said it seens
fair.
4:40: 52 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 26- March 26, 2012



CHAIR COLSON, after first determining no one else wshed to
testify, closed public testinony on HB 259.

[ HB 259 was hel d over.]
4:41:10 PM

The conmttee took an at-ease from4:41 p.m to 4:43 p. m

HB 218- PRESCRI PTI ON DRUG SPECI ALTY Tl ERS

4:43:29 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 218, "An Act prohibiting an insurer fromusing a
drug formulary system of specialty tiers under certain
ci rcunst ances. "

4:43: 55 PM

JANET  OGAN, Staff, Representative Keller, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, presented HB 218 on behalf of the House Health and
Social Services Standing Conmittee of which Representative
Keller is the chair, sponsor of HB 218, stated the specialty
tier drugs started in 2006 with Mdicaid, which was foll owed by
ot her insurance conpanies introducing specialty tier drugs,
which range from 1 with the |lowest copay for tier 1 drugs and
t he hi ghest coinsurance for tier 4 drugs. She explained that
copay is flat fee and coinsurance is a percentage of drug costs.
She explained the coinsurance is usually about 30 percent, but
it can anmount to nore than that amount.

4:45:56 PM

M5. OGAN explained that tier 4 drugs are very expensive to
manufacture and are typically used by patients with conditions
such as henophilia, multiple sclerosis, and cancer. She
characterized these patients wusing tier 4 drugs as having
chronic conditions or diseases and these drugs have helped
patients maintain their life and standard of 1iving. She
further explained that nost of the drugs are injectible drugs or
drugs without a generic alternative. She highlighted that the
conpanies are trying to find a way to bring the cost down. This
bill would extend the notification period from 30 days to 90
days to give people who are affected tinme to research

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -27- March 26, 2012



alternatives, including another plan to allow them to retain
their treatnent.

4:46: 36 PM
CHAI R OLSON r eopened public testinony on HB 218.
4:46: 46 PM

SHEELA TALLMAN, Manager, Legislative Affairs, Prenera Blue Cross
Blue Shield of Al aska [Prenera], expressed concern wth the
notice requirenent. She expressed concern with the 90-day
notice requirenent for the specialty pharnacy tiers that 1is
duplicative to the existing processes for notices and the
federal health care formrequirenments that start this ball. She
rel ated that Prenera has done additional work to see how to nmake
t hi s happen. She highlighted that this bill wll significantly
disrupt the plan renewal processes by doubling the notice
timeframe from 45 to 90 days' notice. She explained that the
45-day notice Premera mails out is a conprehensive notice that
addresses the changes to benefits and cost-sharing anounts and
woul d include any changes to the specialty pharmacy tier, as
well as addressing any additional changes to the pharnacy
benefit plan. She explained that the notice is provided with
the associated rate change 45 days before the rates apply.
These would apply to changes in rates that typically go into
effect on an annual basis. She related that the changes to the
requirenent in the federal health care reform law requires
Premera to provide an additional notice to nenbers with the
specific information that nust be provided in three instances,
upon application and enroll nent, upon renewal, and upon request
by individual s and groups.

4:49: 01 PM

M5. TALLMAN offered any change that inpacts the information
provided in the summary docunent triggers a 60-day notification
to nenbers. She explained that this requirement will affect al

pl ans, individual and group coverage, as well as self-funded
pl ans. She provided additional background in terns of the
changes in Prenmera' s processes. She detailed that the tinefrane
from 45 to 90 days wll double the tinmefrane and inpact the
renewal notice Premera currently provides to nmenbers and groups
about changes in their benefits and rates. She highlighted that
this process takes several nonths to conplete, to develop the
benefit plan design, submt the plan to the D vision of
I nsurance (DA) for review, and once the designs and rates are

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 28- March 26, 2012



approved to develop nmaterials for nenbers and brokers, followed
by notification to nmenbers and groups. Further, with the 90-day
notices Prenmera would have to adjust processes to align to the
new requirenents. Additionally, in the individual narket what
may further conplicate this is an annual renewal process to make
changes to rates and coverage at one but tinme;, however,
i ndi vidual coverage is renewed on a nonth-to-nonth basis,
meaning that individuals can apply for and change their plan
designs every 30 days if they choose to do so. She expl ai ned
that due to the processes currently in place and the changes to

the health <care reform requirenents, including additiona
noticing, Prenera opposes this bill. Additionally the new
noticing requirements in the bill wll disrupt the current

renewal process, significantly inpact groups, and potentially
cause disruptions to the narket.

4:50: 55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked whether she has submitted witten
testi nony.

M5. TALLMAN offered to do so.
4:51: 26 PM

CHAI R OLSON asked whether 95 percent of the problens would be
elimnated if the effective date of the bill was July 1 since
nmost of the group policies conme up for renewal on July 1 or
January 1.

M5. TALLMAN answered that nost of the plans start on January 1,
but groups also start throughout the year. She suggested that
Premera would |ike the 45-day notice requirenents since it goes
out to all individuals. She indicated that Prenera has a 45-day
notice for the annual renewal process for individual market and
for groups, she was unsure of the nonth, but each group receives
it as they renew.

4:52:31 PM

CHAIR OLSON offered his belief that nost of the plans comence
on July 1, the fiscal year, or the calendar year, which would
all ow Prenmera four nonths to get ready for renewal s.

MS. TALLMAN answered that if Prenmera could start this process

next year it wll give nore tine to adjust to it, but it
significantly lengthens the tinme franme. Thus, Prenera would be

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 29- March 26, 2012



submitting information, developing projects and |ooking at
devel oping rates nuch further away. She explained that if the
group renewal date is July 1 Prenera would need to provide the
notice three nonths prior to the date, noting the denographics
m ght change. Thus Prenmera would need to begin to rerate them
even after they have received notification.

4:54: 07 PM

CHAIR OLSON asked M. Hall whether July 1 wuld be an
appropriate date and reduce costs.

M5. HALL asked whether he was referring to July 1, 2012.

CHAIR OLSON stated July 1 is four nonths away and significantly
| onger than 45 days.

MS. HALL said one of her recommendati ons woul d have been to nake

the bill effective date on January 1. She explained that all
i ndividual Prenera policies renew on January 1, but the groups
have different renewal tines. She offered her belief for the

pur poses of progranmng and form coverage that January 1 is a
nore pal atable date to all ow adequate preparation tine.

4:55:18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES asked if the effective date was January 1,
2013 whether all of the policies that renew on January 1 would
still require the 90 day noti ce.

M5. HALL answered yes, that the notice would need to be done on
Cct ober 1.

CHAIR OLSON asked whether the sponsor would consider the
anmendnent appropri ate.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER answered that he would accept the change
to January 1.

4:56: 13 PM
REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON noved to adopt Conceptual Amendnent 1, to
change date to January 1, 2012. There being no objection,

Conceptual Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.

CHAIR COLSON, after first determining no one else wshed to
testify, closed public testinony on HB 218.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 30- March 26, 2012



4:56:52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON noved to report HB 218, as anended, out
of committee W th i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanying fiscal notes. There being no objection, the CSHB
218(L&C) was reported fromthe House Labor and Comrerce Standing
Comm ttee.

4:57.: 34 PM
ADJ OURNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at
4:57 p.m

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 31- March 26, 2012



